
ADDENDUM ONE - RFP 2462 

 
600 NE Grand Ave. 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 
(503) 797-1700 

 
Retail Sales at the Oregon Zoo 

Issued December 11, 2013 
 
The following clarifications, changes, additions and deletions to Request for Proposal 2462, hereby become part 
of the Request for Proposals.  It is essential that all prospective Proposers note the content of this Addendum. 
 
Pre-proposals conference attendees on December 4, 2013 at 9:00 am are attached to this addendum as 
Attachment C. 
 
Clarifications 
• Storage is limited and no POD type storage can be placed on the Zoo campus. 
• The floor plans of the store and storage room are attached to this addendum.  See Attachment A Zoo Store 

Floor Plan 
• Java Jungle building is a kiosk owned by another governmental agency that the Zoo uses via an 

intergovernmental agreement and is located at the Max station (a light rail station at the Zoo).  This kiosk is 
currently used to sell tickets.  It has been used as a food location in the past.  The use of this space is not 
guaranteed, but this could be a potential opportunity for retail space and could be included in proposal. 

• Other areas with potential retail opportunities: 
o West Hub - Near the bond funded future Education Center 
o Central Hub near Steller Cove  
o East Hub – Near Elephants Habitat.  Currently called Crossroads.  This location also services 

concerts.  Contractor needs to be aware that concert performers sell merchandise during 
concerts.     

o Masai Hut  
• The Savannah Market Place near Predators of the Serengeti opened in March of 2013. 
• The Sankuru Trader opened summer of 2013. 
• The simulator ride will be removed from the Zoo soon.  The Zoo has traditionally operated traveling exhibits 

internally, but is interested in exploring opportunities of working with the successful vendor with these types of 
attractions in the future.   

• The current version of the construction schedule is attached to this addendum (subject to change by the zoo 
in the future). See Attachment B Construction Project Schedule  

• The conceptual pre-schematic design is located online at this location:  
http://www.oregonzoo.org/sites/default/files/downloads/orzoo_ccmp-111020-lowres.pdf    

• Gate J is the access point for the majority of deliveries to the store.  Gate A has a loading dock and may be 
available for short durations with prior arrangements. 

• The retail Capital Improvement Plan is to be in place in April 2014 with improvements to commence after the 
contract effective date. 

• The Zoo brand was discussed and vendors were urged to keep the Zoo brand in mind if they are the 
successful candidate.  

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Q1: What fixtures will remain in the store? 

A1: All the fixtures will remain. 
 
Q2: What equipment will remain in the store? 

A2: Successful vendor will be responsible for their own POS system.  Shelves, office furniture, etc 
shall remain. 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.oregonzoo.org/sites/default/files/downloads/orzoo_ccmp-111020-lowres.pdf
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Q3: How many people use the Zoo Max station? 
 A3:  Partial results from a 2012 survey 
 

Survey Data Zoo - Transit Mode Share 
Typical Weekend Day Survey 

  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
  Jan-Mar Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec 
  2012 2012 2012 2012 

          
Average daytime attendance 3,302 7,452 7,213 5,622 
Transit mode share 17% 19% 25% 15% 

Typical Weekend Day Survey 
  1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr 
  Jan-Mar Apr-Jun Jul-Sep Oct-Dec 
  2012 2012 2012 2012 

          
Average daytime attendance 1,475 4,366 6,033 3,018 
Transit mode share 17% 22% 18% 13% 

 
 
Q4: Are sales figures available by ancillary? 
 A4:  Note that totals do not directly tie to the monthly gross revenue data in the RFP due to timing issues. 

 Gross Sales       

Fiscal 
Year End 

Cascade 
Outfitters 

Stroller 
Shop 

Crossroad
s 

Sankuru 
(Open 
June 
2013) 

Formerly 
Tiger 

Souvenirs 
Now 

Savannah 
Marketplace 

Dino Museum Sum of Totals 

2011 1,686,566.47 77,276.61 97,588.47  7,342.40 93,729.30 1,962,503.25 
2012 1,825,511.79 85,458.20 134,929.08  12,394.56 50,856.16 2,109,149.79 
2013 2,039,732.29 80,945.15 128,646.60 436.82 44,128.70  2,293,889.56 
2014 847,555.61 50,164.70 54,154.91 23,034.75 55,813.10  1,030,723.07 

Grand 
Total 6,399,366.15 293,844.66 415,319.06 23,471.57 119,678.76 144,585.46 7,396,265.66 

 
 
Q5: Are concert chair rentals provided by current retailer? 

A5: Yes 
 
Q6: What is the current inventory? 

A6: $205,000  
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Q7: What is the monthly attendance for 2010/2011? 

A7:  
Attendance              
Fiscal Year 10-11 JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL 

              Adult 82,560 100,318 41,273 18,984 13,407 46,211 9,976 11,948 19,796 32,671 39,466 58,210 474,820 

Senior 4,314 4,280 2,431 1,353 772 2,125 390 425 753 1,250 1,620 3,048 22,761 

Youth 28,751 29,333 10,616 5,337 3,477 11,177 2,645 3,625 7,377 11,070 10,486 18,647 142,541 

Group 3,993 1,464 2,539 1,767 1094 504 1045 2,525 3,078 12,240 25,235 5,271 60,755 
Oregon Zoo 
Foundation 
(Adult, Senior, 
Youth 
Combined) 98,349 93,376 62,166 41,526 31,248 75,453 30,122 24,974 33,821 52,789 60,447 77,985 682,256 

Free 18,942 18,021 14,542 9,845 6,053 12,700 11,656 4,189 6,469 13,759 19,756 17,238 153,170 

Fiscal 10-11 total 236,909 246,792 133,567 78,812 56,051 148,170 55,834 47,686 71,294 123,779 157,010 180,399 1,536,303 
 
 
Q8: What is the monthly attendance and revenue for July through October 2013? 

A8:  Through November 2013 
 

 
             

Attendance 

Fiscal Year 13-14 JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL 

              Adult 90,569 92,476 33,899 21,585 18,938 
       

257,467 

Senior 4,770 5,005 2,198 1,819 1115 
       

14,907 

Youth 27,801 29,580 7,556 6,538 5,563 
       

77,038 

Group 2,677 2,259 2,412 1,769 1346 
       

10,463 
Oregon Zoo 
Foundation 
(Adult, Senior, 
Youth 
Combined) 79,676 80,257 34,896 42,505 41,884 

       
279,218 

Free 14,669 16,091 11,031 7,729 8,151               57,671 

Fiscal 13-14 total 220,162 225,668 91,992 81,945 76,997 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 696,764 

 

Gift Shop  Gross Revenue 
             

Fiscal Year 13-14 JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE TOTAL 

              
Non-member Sales 250,412 260,640 174,195 73,720 47,208 

       
806,175 

Member Sales 66,603 58,132 50,374 24,989 29,764               229,862 
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Fiscal 13-14 total 317,016 318,772 224,569 98,708 76,972 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,036,037 

 
 
Q9:  What is the attendance of the ZooLights event? 

A9:  
Zoo Lights Attendance 

2010 
        
141,716  

2011 
        
197,453  

2012 
        
183,098  

 
  

Q10:  Do revenue numbers from Aramark include Stroller Rentals? Any other Ancillary revenues?  
A10:  Yes, revenue numbers include stroller/wheelchair rentals, various coin-operated vending and 

fudge sales. 
 

Q11:  Would it be possible to get the zoo logo in eps format? 
A11:  The Oregon Zoo Logo file is available by request at bidsandproposals@oregonmetro.gov.  The 

guidelines on proper usage of the Zoo logo are attached to the Addendum as Attachment D. 
 

Q12: According to RFP there was a big jump in revenue in Jan – 2013 compared to 2011 and 2012 – why? 
A12:  The Zoo had an elephant birth at the end of 2012 which generated much excitement and 

contributed to overall sales. 
 
Q13:  What is the cost associated to Metro background checks? 

A13:  In general $50.00 per background check is the current average (this includes the fee for driving 
record check). There are additional fees for Eviction Search/Tenant screening ($9), Employment 
Credit Check ($9), and Education Verification ($9.50). 

 
Q14: Will the contractor be required to amortize/depreciate this investment so that it will be fully amortized by 

the end of the initial 5 year contract term? 
A14: The Zoo has no opinion on the Contractor’s accounting treatment for the Capital Investment. 
 

 
Q15: If the Contractor’s calculated and paid commissions for one month exceeds the minimum payment for 

that month (annual guarantee divided by 12), but then has actual commissions that are less than the 
minimum payment in the next month, will the excess commissions from the previous month be applied? In 
other words, does the minimum commission guarantee have to be met every month even though the 
contractor has exceeded the minimum annual guarantee for the year? 
A15: Specific contract language is negotiable.  The Zoo would prefer a monthly payment equal to one-

twelfth of the minimum guarantee, with a year-end reconciliation for any excess commissions 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this solicitation remain the same. 
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ID Task Name Start

1 A Better Zoo Program Construction 
Projects Schedule

Mon 11/7/11

2
3 Elephant Lands Mon 11/7/11

4
5 Procurement/Design/Bid Mon 11/7/11
6
7 Construction - Train, Road and WLL Thu 4/4/13
8
9 Construction - Elephant Habitat Thu 9/12/13
10
11 Condor Wed 7/25/12

12
13 Procurement/Design/Bid Wed 7/25/12
14
15 Construction Mon 6/3/13
16
17 Education Center Thu 3/21/13

18
19 Early Demolition Thu 3/21/13
20
21 Procurement/Design/Bid Mon 1/6/14
22
23 Construction Mon 4/6/15
24
25 Polar Bear Mon 4/13/15

26
27 Procurement/Design/Bid Mon 4/13/15
28
29 Construction Mon 8/15/16
30
31 Primates and Rhino Mon 11/21/16

32
33 Procurement/Design/Bid Mon 11/21/16
34

Elephant Lands

Procurement/Design/Bid

Construction - Train, Road and WLL

9/12 Construction - Elephant Habitat 

Condor

Procurement/Design/Bid

Construction

Education Center

Early Demolition

Procurement/Design/Bid

Construction

Polar Bear

Procurement/Design/Bid

Construction

Primates and Rhino

Procurement/Design/Bid

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

A Better Zoo Program Construction Projects Schedule

As of October 18, 2013

A Better Zoo Program
Monthly Report

Nov. 6, 2013

Page 1 of 2  All Construction Projects Schedule 20131018.mpp 
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ID Task Name Start

35 Construction Mon 1/15/18 Construction
H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

A Better Zoo Program Construction Projects Schedule

As of October 18, 2013

A Better Zoo Program
Monthly Report

Nov. 6, 2013

Page 2 of 2  All Construction Projects Schedule 20131018.mpp 
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OREGON ZOO LOGO GUIDELINES

CLEAR SPACE
Clear space is the visual buffer between logo and other elements or the 
edge of the page. No other element should encroach into the clear area.  
The minimum clear area around all sides of the logo is equal to the height 
of the “Z”in the ZOO wordmark. 

MINIMUM SIZE
For readability, the logo should not be any smaller than 0.5 inches tall for 
the vertical version or 0.5 inches wide for the horizontal version. There is 
no maximum size as long as the clear space requirements are met. 

LOGO APPROVAL
To ensure brand consistency, all projects using the foundation logo must 
be approved by the Oregon Zoo marketing department prior to printing/
launch. Send a draft PDF to your zoo contact. Please allow 48 hours for 
approval.

QUESTIONS
For alternate formats and questions regarding usage, please contact
Tyson Stoianoff, Graphic and Interpretive Lead, Oregon Zoo
503-525-4203 • tyson.stoianoff@oregonzoo.org

APPEARANCE
The relationship between elephant symbol and wordmarks must remain 
consistent and cannot be used separately. The logo should not be altered in 
any way. Be careful not to skew the logo when resizing and do not retype 
the wordmarks.

Note:  Always use approved logo files. 

LOGO  
The logo has two versions that can be used. The horizontal version is 
the preferred standard. The vertical version can be used where space or 
proportions restrict the use of the horizontal logo. 

Note:  The color versions of the logo have been discontinued. The black and 
white logos are the standards.

LOGO FILES LOCATION
T:\Logos\Oregon Zoo Logo

Note:  The elephant and the Metro logo circle are white and need to be 
reproduced so the background does not show through.   

INAPPROPRIATE LOGO USES
The logo can be adapted in certain cases, but 
there are specific uses that are never permitted. 
These are a few examples of inappropriate uses 
of the logo. 

0.5”

0.5”

Symbol Wordmark

Wordmark

REVERSED LOGO

For use on dark backgrounds. 

Note:  The reversed version of the logo is different from the standard logo. 
Do not change the standard logo from black to white as it results in a “x-ray”  
elephant image (see third example below).

OREGON
ZOO

OZ_Logo_V_BW.eps

OZ_Logo_V_REV.eps

OZ_Logo_H_BW.eps

OZ_Logo_H_REV.eps

Oregon Zoo Logo Guidelines Sheet-Single Color
  Updated 10/9/2013
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